# **Project Dissertation**

# Agricultural Marketing Information System Network: A Gap Analysis for Paddy

Submitted by
Amit Mehta
2K14/MBA/07

Under the guidance of
Dr. Pradeep Kumar Suri
Head, Delhi School of Management



Delhi School of Management

Delhi Technological University

Bawana Road, Delhi – 110042

Jan – May, 2016

#### CERTIFICATE

This is to certify that the dissertation report titled "Agricultural Marketing Information System Network: A Gap Analysis for Paddy" is a bonafide work carried out by Mr. Amit Mehta of MBA 2014-16 and submitted to Delhi School of Management, Delhi Technological University, Bawana Road, Delhi-42 in partial fulfillment of the requirement for the award of the Degree of Masters of Business Administration.

Signature of Guide (DSM)	Signature of Head
	Seal of Head
Place:	
Date:	

#### **DECLARATION**

I, Amit Mehta, student of MBA 2014-16 of Delhi School of Management, Delhi Technological University, Bawana Road, Delhi – 42, hereby declare that the dissertation report "Agricultural Marketing Information System Network: A Gap Analysis for Paddy" submitted in partial fulfillment of Degree of Masters of Business Administration is the original work conducted by me.

The information and data given in the report is authentic to the best of my knowledge.

This report is not being submitted to any other University, for award of any other Degree, Diploma or Fellowship.

	Amit Mehta
Place:	
Date:	

#### **ACKNOWLEDGEMENT**

First of all, I would like to thank Dr. Pradeep Kumar Suri, who was my guide and my mentor during this project, for providing me with the opportunity to do this dissertation under his guidance and expertise.

I also thank my teammates Kapil Sharma, Kinshuk Jaiswal and Prateek Malhotra for being exceptional team members and working with me in unison throughout the duration of my project

I also extend my gratitude to my Parents, Mr. Chander Parkash Mehta and Mrs. Usha Mehta, who provided me with their love and support whenever I needed it.

Lastly, I would like to thank God for giving me the skills and the patience because of which this project was made possible.

**Amit Mehta** 

#### **ABSTRACT**

The AGMARKNET portal is an initiative taken by the Directorate of Marketing and Inspection, Ministry of Agriculture and Farmer Welfare, Government of India, with the aim of collecting and disseminating marketing related information of agricultural commodities throughout the country. This information is highly crucial in nature as it can be used by various stakeholders, such as farmers, traders and policy makers among others, to make important decisions at individual as well as national level. It also aims to strengthen the economic position of farmers as well as consumers by providing them with marketing related information of agricultural commodities spanning over all the markets in the country. Such information will enable the farmers to obtain fair returns on their produce. For consumers, it means that they will be able to obtain agricultural produce at fair and affordable prices.

To achieve these objectives, it is necessary that the information being recorded and disseminated by the AGMARKNET portal be of accurate and reliable nature. The fact that this information is also intended to be used for national level agricultural policy decisions, makes it even more crucial for the information to be highly accurate and complete in all aspects.

This study aims to analyze the daily market data reported by the markets on the AGMARKNET portal, regarding the non-perishable agricultural commodity Paddy, over a period of time and test the data in terms of quality, correctness, accuracy and reliability. Various techniques have been used to analyze the data and establish the various types of anomalies that may or may not exist in the data. The study also aims to establish whether the original intention of the AGMARKNET initiative of uploading accurate market related data timely and regularly, is being fulfilled, and establish the defaulters in the process, if any.

The activity involved daily collection of data of prices and arrivals of all the markets in the country from the AGMARKNET portal regarding the non – perishable commodity Paddy. The data collection was repeated after a pre-

defined period of time to identify deficiencies and verify the various evaluation parameters. Microsoft Excel has been used as an analysis tools in this study.

#### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

1. Introduction	1
1.1 Introduction to the project	1
1.1.1 Background	1
1.1.2 Directorate of Marketing and Inspection	2
1.1.3 National Informatics Centre (NIC)	2
1.1.4 State Agricultural Marketing Boards	3
1.2 Objectives of the study	5
2. Literature Review	6
2.1 What is Agricultural Marketing?	6
2.2 Market Information	7
2.3 Marketing Training	8
2.4 Role of Agricultural Marketing system in economic development	8
2.5 Importance of fair price to both farmers and consumers	9
2.6 Green Revolution	9
2.7 AGMARKNET – globalization of Indian Agriculture and Green	10
Revolution	
2.7.1 Situation	10
2.7.2 Knowledge Portal	11
2.7.3 Price and arrivals	11
2.7.4 Commodities and varieties	12
2.7.5 Grading and standardization	12
2.7.6 Benefits	12
2.7.7 Efficient and timely utilization of market data:	12
2.7.8 Farmer empowerment	13
2.7.9 Improvement in Agricultural Marketing	13
2.8 Conclusion of the review	13
3. Methodology	14
3.1 Significance of study	14
3.2 Process of analysis	14

3.2.1 Phase I	15
3.2.2 Phase II	15
4. Data Analysis	18
4.1 Introduction	18
4.2 Analysis Tools	18
4.3 Data Analysis	19
4.4 Findings	27
4.5 Recommendations	28
5. Bibliography	30
6. Annexure-I: Both Price And Arrival [Paddy(Dhan)] of 17-Mar-2016	34
when data was collected on 28 <sup>th</sup> March 2016.	
Annexure-II: Both Price And Arrival [Paddy(Dhan)] of 28-April-2016	36
when data was collected on 28 <sup>th</sup> March 2016.Both Price And Arrival	
[Paddy(Dhan)] of 29-April-2016	

#### **LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS**

Sr. No.	Abbreviation	Description
1.	ICT	Information and Communication Technology
2.	AGMARKNET	Agricultural Marketing Information Network
3.	NIC	National Informatics Centre
4.	DMI	Directorate of Marketing and Inspection
5.	AMA	Agricultural Marketing Adviser (to the Govt. of
		India)
6.	IADP	Intensive Agricultural Development Programme
7.	SMS	Short Message Service
8.	NGO	Non-governmental Organization
9.	FAO	Food and Agriculture Organization
10.	IFFCO	Indian Farmers Fertilizer Cooperative Limited
11.	MCX	Multi Commodity Exchange of India
12.	NCDEX	National Commodity & Derivatives Exchange
13.	NMCE	National Multi Commodity Exchange of India Ltd.
14.	WHO	World Health Organization (WHO)
15.	APMCS	APMCS (Agricultural Produce Market Committees)
16.	EDP	electronic data processing (EDP)
17.	GPL	(GNU) General Public License
18.	GNU	GNU (operating system) is Not Unix (recursive
		abbreviation)
19.	OS	Operating System
20.	SQL	Sequential Query Language

#### **LIST OF TABLES**

Sr.	Table	Table Description	Page
No.			Number
1	Table 4.1	Late updation of data of paddy	20
2	Table 4.2	Change in the subtotal for paddy crop	21
3	Table 4.2.1	Depicts the data recorded on 17 <sup>th</sup> March 2016 for the state of Andhra Pradesh	22
4	Table 4.2.2	Depicts the data recorded on 28 <sup>th</sup> March 2016 for the state of Andhra Pradesh	23
5	Table 4.3	Incomplete updation of data	24
6	Table 4.4	Difference in the number of markets.	25
7	Table 4.4.1	Depicts the number of markets on 28 <sup>th</sup> March 2016	26

#### Chapter 1

#### Introduction

#### 1.1 Introduction to the project

#### 1.1.1 Background

Agricultural marketing in India has come a long way since independence, but still many challenges are present. Market information could be considered as a crucial factors for farmers in order to plan production and marketing of the produce. Other market participants also require market information in order to make decisions related to trading. Thus it was highly essential that the marketing information is accurate and complete in all aspects, and is efficiently disseminated to the stakeholders. With the advent of Information and Communication Technology (ICT), it became easier to communicate large volumes of data to far and remote locations. Thus in order to strengthen the farming communities and to provide them with opportunities of trade, there was a need to implement a solution providing "Agricultural Marketing Information Network" in the country.

As a result, the Central Sector Scheme project of Agricultural Marketing Information Network (AGMARKNET) was launched by the Ministry of Agriculture, Government of India in the month of March, 2000. It aimed to connect together all the agricultural produce wholescale markets throughout the country and the State Agricultural Marketing Boards and Directorates. The project received technical support from National Informatics Centre (NIC).

Till date, a total of 3245 nodes have been affiliated with the scheme. These nodes comprise of agricultural produce markets, field offices of Directorate of Marketing and Inspection and State Agricultural Marketing Boards/ Directorates and their attached offices, etc. These nodes have been provided with necessary computer hardware components along with internet connectivity. 'AGMARK,' a user friendly software package has been developed to facilitate compilation and

transmission of data at market level. The reporting system is now web enabled. The Agmarknet portal (<a href="http://agmarknet.dac.gov.in/">http://agmarknet.dac.gov.in/</a>) strengthens interface with farmers and other beneficiaries The AGMARKNET portal also provides access to various websites of organizations involved with agricultural marketing. It provides weekly trend analysis, futures prices and international price trends for important commodities.

#### 1.1.2 Directorate of Marketing and Inspection

The Directorate of Marketing and Inspection (DMI) is under the Governance of the Ministry of Agriculture. The Government of India had setup the DMI in the year 1935 to facilitate the implementation of agricultural marketing policies and programmes. Since then the Directorate has been working tirelessly to bring about advancement of agricultural marketing as well as safeguarding the interests of produces, suppliers as well as consumers. It also facilitates interaction between the Central and State Governments regarding agricultural marketing policies. The Directorate is headed by the Agricultural Marketing Adviser to the Govt. of India (AMA).

#### 1.1.3 National Informatics Centre (NIC)

The National Informatics Centre (NIC) was established in 1976 to provide ICT Solutions for effective e-Governance initiatives. National Informatics Centre has spearheaded the "Informatics-led-development" programme of the Government of India and has generated competitive advantage by implementing ICT applications in social & public administration. The following major activities are being undertaken:

- Setting up of ICT Infrastructure
- Implementation of National and State Level e-Governance Projects
- Products and Services
- Consultancy to the government departments
- Research and Development
- Capacity Building

Since its inception, NIC has undertaken many software application implementations based on state-of-the-art technology. NIC is also responsible managing the information systems and websites of Ministries/Departments, Disaster Recovery Centres, Network Operations facility to manage heterogeneous networks spread across Bhawans, States and Districts, Certifying Authority, Video-Conferencing and capacity building across the country. NIC also has under its belt various initiatives such as Government eProcurement System (GePNIC), Office Management Software (eOffice), Hospital Management System (eHospital), Government Financial Accounting Information System (eLekha), etc.

For the Agricultural Marketing Network Scheme, NIC had provided computer hardware, developed the software, provided training to market personnel towards the operation of the hardware and software systems and provided internet connectivity. It has also developed the integration between the software packages developed by the various states with AGMARKNET to bring about seamless uniformity in the database.

#### 1.1.4 State Agricultural Marketing Boards

Ever since the country attained independence, the Planning Commission of India has been striving hard to maximize agricultural production. In pursuit of this goal, the Zamidari system had to be abolished and surplus land had to be distributed among farmers and laborers. The programmes like Intensive Agricultural Development Programme (IADP) were launched. And rural development became of prime importance. So, on one hand, on the national level, efforts were being made to maximize production, while on the state level, the focus was laid on sale, storage and processing of agricultural produce. There was also the issue of distribution of the produce so that the produce was sold off at prices which were to be fair to both farmers, traders and consumers. It was with this objective in view that many states chose to establish State

Agricultural Marketing Boards in order to facilitate marketing activities regarding agricultural produce.

For AGMARKNET, the State Government/ Marketing Boards provided the list of markets to be covered under the Agricultural Marketing Scheme. The selected markets were to provide site for installation comprising facilities for computer installation, telephone connectivity and computer operator.

Market Committees/ Controlling authorities of AGMARKNET node at market level were assigned to collect relevant data and information, feed it and transmit it to the State level and AGMARKNET portal. NIC had also trained suitable persons from each node in operating computer and handling software package.

At each market node, there is a person assigned to collect data and transmit it. An incentive scheme has been introduced to reward data entry operators for maintaining performance standards regularly.

#### 1.2 Significance of study

As a step towards globalization of agriculture, the Directorate of Marketing & Inspection (OMI) has embarked upon an ICT project: NICNET based Agricultural Marketing Information System Network (AGMARKNET)" in the country, during the Ninth Plan, for linking all-important APMCS (Agricultural Produce Market Committees), State Agricultural marketing Boards / Directorates and OMI regional offices located throughout the country, for effective information exchange on market prices NIC implements this project on a turn-key basis.

The purpose of study is to understand and investigate into the data quality. There are many approaches in the literature that can be applied to studying data quality. A data life cycle which focuses on the sequence of activities from creation to disposition of data has been proposed. Another concept that might be applicable is the value chain, where defining, gathering and compiling data are categorized by the value they add at each stage in information system.

Other approaches to the data quality problem include an electronic data processing (EDP) audit and database integrity. Although all of these approaches have merits, we choose to draw upon an analogy that exists between quality issues in an information systems environment.

#### 1.3 Objectives of the Study

The AGMARKNET Portal, though fully functional for the last decade and a half, still suffers from certain shortcomings that raise questions upon the quality and integrity of the data being provided by the portal. The data containing marketing information about the various agricultural produce is being uploaded on the portal at the end of each day. This makes the data prone to human errors which may be either deliberate or unintentional in nature. This study aims to find out whether such errors exist and to evaluate the quality of the data being provided by the AGMARKNET portal. Since it would be impractical to evaluate the data of all the commodities being listed on the portal, we shall only evaluate the data for one of the non-perishable commodities i.e. Paddy. The objectives of this study are as follows:

- 1. To uncover any faults / errors / shortcomings in the data being uploaded on the AGMARKNET portal.
- 2. To evaluate the data being uploaded on the AGMARKNET portal in terms of accuracy, integrity and reliability.

## **Chapter-2**

#### LITERATURE REVIEW

A lot of literature is available on agricultural marketing and its' management. It is neither desirable nor possible to survey the whole literature. Therefore, only those relevant works have been reviewed, which reveal some general idea and provide a rationale for the present study. Such review of literatures always helps the researcher in getting an overview of the problem under study. It, moreover, helps to identify areas where in-depth research has not been carried out. Such as identification of fresh areas facilitate the taking up of new and meaningful research work.

#### 2.1 WHAT IS AGRICULTURAL MARKETING?

Agricultural marketing can best be defined as series of services involved in moving a product from the point of production to the point of consumption. Thus agricultural marketing is a series of interconnected activities involving: planning production, growing and harvesting,, grading, packing, transport, storage, agroand food processing, distribution, and sale (Tracey, 2003). Such activities cannot take place without the exchange of information and are often heavily dependent on the availability of suitable finance. Marketing systems are dynamic. They are competitive and involve continuous 21 change and improvement. Those who have high costs, do not adapt to changes in market demand and provide poor quality are often forced out of business. Marketing has to be customer-oriented and has to provide the farmer, transporter, trader, processor, etc. with a profit. This requires those involved in marketing chains to understand buyer requirements, both in terms of product and business conditions.

#### 2.2 MARKET INFORMATION

Efficient market information can be shown to have positive benefits for farmers and traders. Up-to-date information on prices and other market factors enables farmers to negotiate with traders and also facilitates spatial distribution of products from rural areas to towns and between markets. Most governments in developing countries have tried to provide market information services to farmers, but these have tended to experience problems of sustainability. Moreover, even when they function, the service provided is often insufficient to allow commercial decisions to be made because of time lags between data collection and dissemination (Barrett., 1997). Modern communications technologies open up the possibilities for market information services to improve information delivery through SMS on cell phones and the rapid growth of FM radio stations in many developing countries offers the possibilities of more localised information services. In the longer run, the internet may become an effective way of delivering information to farmers in developing countries like India. However, problems associated with the cost and accuracy of data collection still remain to be addressed. Even when they have access to market information, farmers often require assistance in interpreting that information. For example, the market price quoted on the radio may refer to a wholesale selling price and farmers may have difficulty in translating this into a realistic price at their local assembly market (Barrett, and Carter, 1999). Various attempts have been made in developing countries to introduce commercial market information services but these have largely been targeted at traders, commercial farmers or exporters. It is not easy to see how small, poor farmers can generate sufficient income for a commercial service to be profitable, although, in India a new service introduced by Thompson Reuters was reportedly used by over 100,000 farmers in its first year of operation (Fafchamps, and Minten, 2001).

#### 2.3 MARKETING TRAINING

Farmers frequently consider marketing as being their major problem. However, while they are able to identify such problems as poor prices, lack of transport and high post-harvest losses, they are often poorly equipped to identify potential solutions. Successful marketing requires learning new skills, new techniques and new ways of obtaining information. Extension officers working with ministries of agriculture or NGOs are often well-trained in horticultural production techniques but usually lack knowledge of marketing or post-harvest handling (Fickler, Goodwin, 2001). Ways of helping them develop their knowledge of these areas, in order to be better advise the farmers about market-oriented horticulture, need to be explored. While there is a range of generic guides and other training materials available from FAO and others, these should ideally be tailored to national circumstances to have maximum effect.

# 2.4 ROLE OF AGRICULTURAL MARKETING SYSTEM IN ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

Rao (2000) in his study, "Experience in Agricultural Marketing in India" states that it is only now that the developing countries have increasingly recognized that the agricultural marketing system plays a crucial role in economic development, not only by physically distributing increased production through incentives but also distributing the benefits of growth. As a result, many governments have now tried many approaches to develop the marketing system, with varying degrees of success. Jaganathan (1997) in his paper "Utilisation of Regulated Markets by Farmers in Periyar District, Tamil Nadu", outlines that the establishment of regulated markets to solve marketing problems could be reflected in their proper utilization by farmers for deriving economic benefits. A high degree of utilization of regulated markets by farmers would lead the farming community to higher standard of living.

#### 2.5 IMPORTANCE OF FAIR PRICE TO BOTH FARMERS AND CONSUMERS

Organized market can alone ensure fair price to producers as well as consumers. Farmers' markets operate in the same line. If marketing of agricultural produce is properly organized, it can fetch a good price to the farmer and he will be inspired to produce more. The interest of the consumer will also be taken care of side by side. An efficient and properly organized marketing should get along with price strategies. Therefore, insure fair price to the producer as well as to the consumer.

#### 2.6 GREEN REVOLUTION

M.S. Swaminathan, the eminent agricultural scientist, analyzing the success of green revolution in Punjab state "The green revolution in Punjab is not a miracle". It happened only because the following prerequisites for its success existed in mid-sixties.

- 1. Land consolidation and levelling.
- 2. Owner cultivation resulting in a long term stake in land.
- 3. Rural communication.
- 4. Rural electrification and
- 5. A dynamic agricultural university.

According to Acharya (2004) India's age old farming practice has taken a turn in the recent years. There had been a technological breakthrough after the advent of Green Revolution, the evolution of high-yielding variety seeds, increased use of fertilizers, insecticides and pesticides, installation of pump sets and tractorisation and mechanization. This technological breakthrough has led to a substantial increase in production on the farms and to a large marketable and marketed surplus.

# 2.7 AGMARKNET – GLOBALISATION OF INDIAN AGRICULTURE & GREEN REVOLUTION

A step towards globalisation of Indian agriculture, and a step in bringing another green revolution the e-governance portal AGMARKNET facilitates generation and transmission of prices, commodity arrival information from agricultural produce markets, and Web-based dissemination to producers, consumers, traders, and policy makers transparently and quickly.

It aims at improving the decision-making capability of the farmers and strengthening their bargaining power.

#### 2.7.1 Situation

Agricultural marketing is an initiative to bring the second generation of green revolution problems. Indian marketing is undergoing a significant metamorphosis because of economic liberalization and globalization.

Market information is an important aspect of agricultural marketing. The importance of sound agricultural marketing policies for ensuring fair returns to the farmers cannot be overemphasized.

Therefore, it has become necessary on the part of the regulatory agencies to ensure remunerative prices to farmers for the sale of their produce, to boost up their efforts for increasing and sustaining the agricultural production. Almost all states and union territories are providing market information in one form or the other for the benefits of market users like producers, traders, and consumers. However, the information is collected and disseminated by use of conventional methods causing inordinate delay in communicating to different groups and this, in turn, adversely affects their economic interest.

Therefore, the availability and dissemination of complete and accurate marketing information is the key to achieve both operational and pricing efficiency in the marketing system.

To strengthen interface with farmers and other beneficiaries, AGMARKNET portal has been evolved. Over 600 markets regularly report price-related data being disseminated through the portal. The portal also serves as a single window for accessing Web sites of various organizations.

It also provides weekly trend analysis, linkage to online commodity exchange of India, Food and Agriculture Organization (FAO), Indian Farmers Fertilizer Cooperative Limited (IFFCO) Web site, and so forth.

The development of the AGMARKNET portal and the state-level portal, and undertaking market-led extension activities are important components of this scheme. AGMARKNET ensures dissemination of data through the network to any distance for the benefit of citizens, farmers, traders, and consumers.

The improved communication system has enabled producers to learn about probable markets in which their produce can be disposed more profitably. Also the modernization of the market information system has led to efficiency in markets and increased participation of the farmers.

#### 2.7.2 Knowledge Portal

The AGMARKNET portal is constantly enriched with agricultural marketing—related information. Efforts are on to reach out to the farmers in their regional languages. As of now, the portal is disseminating daily prices and arrivals information in eleven regional languages. The portal also caters to the diversified needs of these stakeholders by providing the following agricultural marketing—related information as a single window Web service over the Internet.

#### 2.7.3 Price and Arrivals

The portal provides access to commodity-wise, variety-wise daily prices and arrivals information of various wholesale markets. Future prices from the three national multi-commodity exchanges are reflected on the portal.

#### 2.7.4 Commodities and Varieties

A commodity base, comprising of more than 300 commodities and about 2,000 varieties has been evolved. The commodities are being categorized into various groups: cereals, pulses, oil seeds, fruits, vegetables, spices, fiber crops, beverages, forest products, drugs and narcotics, dry fruits, flowers, forest products, livestock/poultry, and so forth to facilitate easy retrieval of market information.

#### 2.7.5 Grading and Standardization

To promote the importance of quality among the farming community, the portal emphasizes on standardization and grading aspects of the agricultural products. The information is provided in the form of documents/specifications prescribed by the act/rules of DMI and other agencies. It also links to the Codex International food standards, guidelines, and related texts such as the codes of practice under the joint FAO/World Health Organization (WHO) Food Standards Programme.

#### 2.7.6 Benefits

The AGMARKNET project has strengthened the interfaces among government organizations, farmers, industry, policy makers, and other beneficiaries.

The project also aims at empowering the farming community with market information. For maximizing the benefits it needs to be integrated with other ICT initiatives targeting the upliftment of rural India. The project is part of National eGovernance action plan of Government of India.

#### 2.7.7 Efficient and timely utilization of market data

AGMARKNET has helped establish a nationwide information network for speedy collection and dissemination of market data for efficient and timely utilization.

#### 2.7.8 Farmer empowerment

The AGMARKNET has already emerged as the sun-shine website to bargain better prices for their produce, and marching ahead towards becoming an e-Commerce and e-Business Portal in India.

#### 2.7.9 Improvement in agricultural marketing

Progressive sensitization and orientation of farmers helps them respond to new challenges in agricultural marketing by using Information, Communication and Technology (ICT) as a vehicle of extension.

#### 2.8 Conclusion of the Review

The review concludes that multiple arguments do exist in international and national literature on the ways and need of marketing of Agriculture in overall as well as specifically in our country India and methods in which systems can be developed to centralize the overall produce, consumption, prices and distribution of Agricultural Produce in the country. One such step in that direction has been AGMARKNET. All schools of thought acknowledge the powerful effects of the regulated markets namely farmer motivation, team work of officials, organizational commitment, farmer orientation, and increasing the arrivals.

### Chapter-3

#### **METHODOLOGY**

#### 3.1 Process of analysis

#### Phase I – Preliminary activities

**Step 1:** Write a mission statement, decides the purpose of project and what are we looking for.

**Step 2:** Identify the market data for a particular commodity, which includes arrival, minimum price, maximum price, modal price.

#### Phase II - Compile and analyze the data

**Step 1:** The data is to be collected daily for the commodity and then recorded again after a specific period of time to look for any anomalies.

**Step 2:** Compile the data of same date observed on different dates

Step 3: Test data

Step 4: In depth analysis of internal data like arrival and modal price

Step 5: Findings

**Step 6:** Recommendations, keeping resource constraints and feasibility in mind.

#### 3.1.1 Phase I

The two steps in phase I build the foundation for the organizations to successfully address data quality and information. Step 1 asks the organization to write a mission statement, if one does not exist. This important, yet often overlooked, step ensures that the organization has agreement on its purpose for existence. Step 2 identifies the data of different commodity on daily basis. Although this seems obvious, in many organizations, there are multiple checks. The exercise of focusing on the modal price is useful. This is accomplished by the first defining the term "modal price" as "price at which maximum quantity has been sold of a particular commodity". Phase II moves the team into compilation and analyzing for the quality of data.

#### 3.1.2 Phase II

Phase II identifies, defines, compile and analyze the data. Perspective 1 obtains input from the mandi; it seems obvious that the input would be solicited. Surrogate middleman, or staff personnel who interact closely with the farmer, provider perspective 2 for quality check of data. They are experts with respect to the process and the farmer interactions with the process. Not only do they have Knowledge of underlying issues, but they have the benefit of multiple interactions with multiple farmers.

Steps 1, 2 and 3 in Phase II obtain input from the three perspectives mentioned above, while Step 4 combines the three sources of input. Step5 and 6 define the dimensions and test the definitions. Step 7, 8 and 9 prioritize the resulting process and service quality.

#### Step 1:

- Record data of each commodity on daily basis for a limited time period mentioned in our report. We have to keep arrival and price in our data, So choose both option in filter and than download the data.
- As we are doing research on data quality, we choose a particular commodity for this purpose. We need to record for whole markets covered under AGMARKNET project.

#### Step 2:

- In this step compilation need to be done. We gathered data of commodity on daily basis and gathered data of same date in next 2 or 3 consecutive days.
- The aim here is to verify whether the data of commodities is being updated daily or not.

#### Step 3:

- The aim here is to verify whether the data of commodities is being updated daily or not. If not, then it identifies that the purpose of the AGMARKNET portal is not being fulfilled. The AGMARKNET portal is supposed to have daily updates of data from the various markets across the country.
- Second purpose is to check the price (modal price) of each market. We
  need to check whether the modal price is wrongly reported as the
  average of min. and max. Price. As per definition, modal price is the price
  at which maximum quantity of commodity is sold.

#### Step 4:

- This iterative process is performed by the team of experts. Emphasis is
  placed on data received directly from the portal. There is need to check
  the trend of prices and find out the markets who are doing this exercise
  repeatedly.
- The sole purpose of this portal is to serve the information on daily basis. If farmers do not get the information on time then it is of little use. The dimensions now must be defined and prioritized.

#### Step 5:

- This step is an attempt to find flaws in data quality and how to improve it.
   Data quality is not related to complete data only. It is also related to correct data or information on time.
- Mandis or markets need to be identified who have not reported correct and complete data on time.

#### Step 6:

- In this step we provide recommendations and solutions to improve the data quality available on portal.
- Certain background checks and new approaches will be discussed to record data.

### **Chapter-4**

# **Data Analysis**

#### 4.1 Introduction

Two different types of analyses were performed on the data retrieved from the AGMARKNET portal. Firstly, the data was analyzed as a whole. This helped in identifying major trends in the data. Secondly, data collected on individual days were analyzed and compared together. This helped to obtain in-depth insight into the data. Observations regarding the following aspects of data were made:

- 1. Are all nodes updating the data to the portal regularly as expected?
- 2. Is the data represented on the portal complete?
- 3. If the data is not being updated timely, then, are there some nodes who are defaulting from the protocol on a regular basis?

4. Is the modal price being correctly recorded? Or is there evidence that mean of minimum and maximum price is being wrongly recorded as modal price? Are there any nodes who are defaulting from the protocol in this manner on a regular basis?

#### 4.2 Analysis Tools

#### Microsoft Excel 2013

Microsoft Excel is a spreadsheet developed by Microsoft for Windows, Mac OS X, Android and iOS. It features calculation, graphing tools, pivot tables, and a macro programming language called Visual Basic for Applications. It has been a very widely applied spreadsheet for these platforms, especially since version 5 in 1993. It forms part of Microsoft Office Software Suite.

Microsoft Excel has been used in this project for analyzing and comparing data collected on individual days.

#### 4.3 Data Analysis

#### Observation 4.3.1 Late updation of data

When data of commodity Paddy was re-recorded after a certain period of time, it showed entirely new nodes which had not uploaded their data previously. For example, when data of 17<sup>th</sup> March<sup>th</sup>, 2016 was recorded at the end of the day, the state of Assam had only two markets showing the data.But when data was recorded on 28<sup>th</sup> April 2016 data about one more market Bongiagon was there.

NEW MARKET BANGAIGAON CAN BE SEEN WHEN DATA WAS COLLECTED ON 28th APRIL 2016 WHEREAS DATA FROM BONGIAGON MARKET IS NOT PRESENT WHEN DATA IS COLLECTED ON 17th MARCH 2016 WHICH LEADS TO THE CHANGE OF SUBTOTAL

Table 4.1: New markets added when data of the same day was re-recorded at a subsequent date

ATA COL										
	LECTED ON 17t	h MARCH 2016 FOR			OF ASSAM			n 8.		
me me	district_name	market_center_na me	Variety	group_na me	Arrival	MIN	MAX	MODAL	date_arriv al	
Assam	Barpeta	Bohorihat	Common	Cereals	1.5	1200	1275	1250	17-Mar-16	
Assam	Nagaon	Dhing	Paddy fine	Cereals	24	1360	1500	1460	17-Mar-16	
į.				Assam Sub Total	25.5	0	0	0		
ATA COL	LECTED ON 28t	h APRIL 2016 FOR PA		THE STATE O	OF ASSAM					
								1490	17-Mar-16	
Assam	Barpeta	Bohorihat	Common	Cereals	1.5	1200	1275		17-Mar-16	
Assam	Nagaon	Dhing	Paddy fine	Cereals	24	1360	1500	1460	17-Mar-16	
				Assam		0	0	0		

#### **Observation 4.3.2 Change in the subtotal**

When data of commodity Paddy was re-recorded after a certain period of time, it showed the change in the subtotal which was not there previously. For example, when data of 17<sup>th</sup> March<sup>th</sup>,2016 was recorded at the end of the day, the subtotal for the state of Andhra Pradesh was 1072.6 whereas when data was recorded on 28<sup>th</sup> March 2016 the subtotal was 1073.3 with a difference of -0.7.

Table 4.2.: Depicts the change in subtotal for same crop from same state on different dates when data of the same day was re-recorded at a subsequent date.

FINDING2			
DATE ON WHICH DATA IS COLLECTED	CROP	STATE	SUBTOTA
17th APRIL 2016	PADDY	A.P.	1072.6
28th MARCH 2016	PADDY	A.P.	1073.3
	CHANGE IN	SUBTOTAL	-0.7

Table 4.2.1.: Depicts the data recorded on 17<sup>th</sup> March 2016 for the state of Andhra Pradesh.

	PLIO ILIE OLI	ANGE IN SUB	IO INCTORIS	CHILL CHICK					
		DATAFORE	ADDY COLLE	CTED ON 17	th MARCH	H 2016 F O	RTHES		ANDHRAF
state_nam e	district_na me	market_ce nter_name	Variety	group_na me	Arrival	MIN	MAX	MODA	date_arri
Andhra	Christian 1	Amadalavala	08507380	277 T 35 T	60,000	78000V	inthesis	1000	Translation as
Pradesh	Srikakulam	5a	Paddy	Cereals	17.3	1410	1450	1430	17-Mar-1
Andhra	East	Anaparthy	MTU-1010	Cereals	0.1	1410	1450	1410	17-Mar-1
Andhra	Nellore	Atmakur(SP	MTU-1010	Cereals	0.1	1410	1450	1430	17-Mar-1
Andhra	West	annor and took	Swarna	Assessment 9		l second	O ALMONDE		Contract Sections
Pradesh	Godavari	Bhimavaram	Masuri [New]	Coreals	0.1	1430	1480	1450	17-Mar-1
Andhra	Visakhapatna	Bhimunipatn							
Pradesh.	m	am	Paddy	Cereals	0.1	1410	1450	1430	17-Mar-10
Andhra	Guntur	Chilakaluripe	BPT	Cereals	0.1	1700	1800	1750	17-Mar-1
Andhra	West	Chintalapudi	MTU-1001	Cereals	0.2	1400	1450	1410	17-Mar-1
Andhra	West	Chintalapudi	MTU-1010	Coreals	0.2	1380	1410	1400	17-Mar-1
Andhra	Prakasam	Chirala	BPT	Cereals	0.1	2400	2500	2450	17-Mar-1
Andhra	Visakhapatna		Samba						
Pradesh	m	Chodavaram	Masuri	Cereals	0.1	1550	1650	1600	17-Mar-1
Andhra	Prakasam	Darsi	BPT	Cereals	0.1	2300	2380	2350	17-Mar-tr
Andhra	Anantapur	Dharmavara	BPT	Cereals	0.1	1450	1450	1450	17-Mar-1
Andhra	Krishna	Divi	BPT	Cereals	0.1	1500	1600	1500	17-Mar-10
Andhra	Nellore	Gudur	MTU-1018	Cereals	0.1	1410	1460	1430	17-Mar-16
Andhra	Srikakulam	lohapuram	Paddų	Coreals	948	1410	1450	1424	17-Mar-16
Andhra	Prakasam	Kandukur	BPT	Cereals	0.1	2350	2400	2370	17-Mar-16
Andhra	Nellore	Kauali	MTU-1010	Cereals	0.1	1410	1470	1450	17-Mar-8
Andhra	Prakasam	Kondapi	BPT	Cereals	0.1	2200	2300	2250	17-Mar-19
Andhra	Vijaganagara	Kothavalasa		Cereals	0.1	1410	1450	1410	17-Mar-9
Andkra	Nellore	Kovur	MTU-1010	Coreals	0.1	1400	1450	1410	17-Mar-1
Andhra	West	Kovvur	MTU-1010	Cereals	0.1	1410	1450	1430	17-Mar-1
Andhra	Prakasam	Maddipadu	BPT	Cereals	0.1	2400	2480	2450	17-Mar-1
Andhra	East	Mandapeta	MTU-1010	Cereals	0.1	1410	1450	1410	17-Mar-1
Andhra	Krishna	Mulayaram	BPT	Cereals	0.1	1410	1450	1410	17-Mar-1
Andhra	Nellore	Naidupet	MTU-1010	Coreals	0.1	1410	1450	1430	17-Mar-18
Andhra	Krishna	Nandigama	BPT	Cereals	0.1	1500	1520	1500	17-Mar-1
Andhra	Prakasam	Ongole	BPT	Cereals	0.1	2400	2500	2420	17-Mar-ti
Andhra	Srikakulam	Palakonda	Paddu	Coreals	17	1410	1450	1430	17-Mar-1
Andhra	Srikakulam	Pathapatna	Paddu	Cereals	17	1410	1450	1410	17-Mar-1
Andhra	East	Schapania	Swarna	- Circuis		11.50	1100		
Pradesh	Godavari	Peddaruram	Masuri (New)	Cereals	25.5	1410	1460	1450	17-Mar-1
Andhra	Srikakulam	Ponduru	Paddu	Cereals	22	1410	1450	1430	17-Mar-II
Andhra	Vijaganagara	Pusapatireg		Coreals	0.1	1410	1450	1450	17-Mar-1
Andhra	Srikakulam	Raiam	Paddu	Cereals	22	1410	1450	1430	17-Mar-1
Andhra	Nellore	Rapur	MTU-1010	Cereals	0.1	1380	1450	1410	17-Mar-I
Andhra	Guntur	Repalli	BPT	Cereals	0.1	2300	2400	2350	17-Mat-1
Andhra	Guntur	Sattenapalli	BPT	Cereals	0.1	1950	2100	2000	17-Mar-II
Andhra	Nellore	Sullurpet	MTU-1010	Coreals	0.1	1410	1450	1430	17-Mar-1
Andhra	Nellore	Udayagiri	MTU-1010	Cereals	0.1	1410	1450	1430	17-Mar-1
Andhra	West	Ungatur	MTU-1010	Cereals	0.1	1400	1460	1440	17-Mar-I
Andhra	Nellore	Vakadu	MTU-1010	Cereals	0.1	1410	1450	1430	17-Mar-1
Andhra	Nellore	Vakadu Venkatagiri	MTU-1010	Cereals	0.1	1360	1410	1380	17-Mar-1
Andera	Vijaganagara	Vijayanagara		Coreals	0.1	1410	1450	1430	17-Mar-1
- CARD W	rqayanagara	vijaganagara	1001	Andhra	5.2	14.00	MOU	7430	ir-wiar-b
				Pradesh					
		2.0		- Jauren	100000000000000000000000000000000000000	50000	5250	12,512	I

Table 4.2.2: Depicts the data recorded on 28<sup>th</sup> March 2016 for the state of Andhra Pradesh.

		DATAFORE	ADDY COLLE	CTED ON 28	th APRIL 2	616 FOR	THE STAT	TE OF AN	IDHRA PRADESH
Andhra	Anantapur	Dharmavara	BPT	Cereals	0.1	1450	1450	1450	17-Mar-16
Andhra	East	Anaparthy	MTU-1010	Cereats	0.1	1410	1450	1410	17-Mar-16
Andhra	East	Mandapeta	MTU-1010	Coreats	0.1	1410	1450	1410	17-Mar-16
Andhra	East		Swarna						
Pradesh	Godavari	Peddapuram	Masuri (Nev)	Cereals	25.5	1410	1460	1450	17-Mar-16
Andhra	Guntur	Chilakaluripe		Cereals	0.1	1700	1800	1750	17-Mar-16
Andhra	Guntur	Macharla	BPT	Cereals	0.1	1470	1550	1520	17-Mar-16
Andhra	Guntur	Flepali	BPT	Cereals	0.1	2300	2400	2350	17-Mar-16
Andhra	Guntur	Sattenapali	BPT	Cereals	0.1	1950	2100	2000	17-Mar-16
Andhra	Krishna	Divi	BPT	Cereals	0.1	1500	1500	2500	17-Mar-16
Andhra	Krishna	Mouva Hgs	BPT	Cereals	0.1	1950	2000	1970	17-Mai-16
Andhra	Krishna	Mouva Hgs	MTU-2077	Coreals	0.2	1410	1450	1430	17-Mar-16
Andhra	Krishna	Melavaram	BPT	Coreals	0.2	1410	1450	1410	17-Mar-16
Andhra	Krishna	Nandigama	BPT	Cereals	0.1	1500	1520	1500	17-Mar-16
Andhra	Nellore	Atmakur[SP	MTU-1010	Cereals	0.1	1410	1450	1430	17-fMar-16
Andhra	Nellore	Gudur	MTU-1010	Cereals	0.1	1410	1460	1430	17-fMar-16
Andhra	Nellore	Kavali	MTU-1010	Cereals	0.1	1410	1470	1450	17-fMar-16
Andhra	Nellore	Kovur	MTU-1010	Cereals	0.1	1400	1450	1410	17-Mar-16
Andhra	Nellore	Maidupet	MTU-1010	Cereals	0.1	1410	1450	1430	17-Mar-16
Andhra	Nellore	Neliore	MTU-1010	Cereats	0.1	1410	1450	1430	17-IMar-16
Andhra	Nellore	Rapur	MTU-1010	Cereals	0.1	1380	1450	1410	17-IMar-16
Andhra	Nellore	Sullurpet	MTU-1010	Cereats	0.1	1410	1450	1430	17-fMar-16
Andhra	Nellore	Udayagiri	MTU-1010	Cereats	0.1	1410	1450	1430	17-Mar-16
Andhra	Nellore	Yakadu	MTU-1010	Cereals	0.1	1410	1450	1430	17-Mar-16
Andhra	Nellore	Yenkatagiri	MTU-1010	Cereals	0.1	1360	1410	1380	17-Mar-16
Andhra	Prakasam	Chinala	BPT	Cereals	0.1	2400	2500	2450	17-Mar-16
Andhra	Prakasam	Darsi	BPT	Cereals	0.1	2300	2380	2350	17-Mar-16
Andhra	Prakasam	Kandukur	BPT	Cereals	0.1	2350	2400	2370	17-Mar-16
Andhra	Frakasam	Kondapi	BPT	Cereals	0.1	2200	2300	2250	17-Mar-16
Andhra	Prakasam	Maddipadu	BPT	Cereals	0.1	2400	2480	2450	17-Mar-16
Andhra	Prakasam	Ongole	BPT	Cereats	0.1	2400	2500	2420	17-Mar-16
Andhra		Amadalavala				2100	2300	2720	11-111-12-12
Pradesh	Srikakulam	sa	Paddu	Coreals	17.3	1410	1450	1430	17-Mar-16
Andhra	Srikakulam	lohapuram	Paddu	Cereals	948	1410	1450	1424	17-Mar-16
Andhra	Srikakulam	Palakonda	Paddy	Cereals	17	1410	1450	1430	17-Mar-16
Andhra	Srikakulam	Pathapatna		Cereals	17	1410	1450	1410	17-Mar-16
Andhra Andhra	Snkakulam Snkakulam		Paddy		22	1410	1450	1430	17-Mar-16 17-Mar-16
		Ponduru	Paddy	Cereals		1410		1430	
Andhra	Snikakulam	Rajam	Paddy	Cereals	22		1450	0.000	17-Mar-16
Andhra	Vijayanagara	Kothavalasa		Cereals		1410	1450	1410	17-Mar-16
Andhra	Mijayanagara	Pusapatireg	700.00	Cereals	0.1	1410	1450	1450	17-Mar-16
Andhra	Vijaganagara	Vijaganagara	1001	Cereals	0.2	1410	1450	1430	17-Mar-16
Andhra	Visakhapatna								
Pradesh	m	am	Paddy	Cereals	0.1	1410	1450	1430	17-fMar-16
Andhra	Yisakhapatna		Samba	_					
Pradesh	m	Chodavaram	Masuri	Cereals	0.1	1550	1650	1600	17-Mar-16
Andhra	West		Swarna	145000	100	13.93	335	3037	
Pradesh	Godavari		Masuri (Nev)		0.1	1430	1480	1450	17-Mar-16
Andhra	West		MTU-1001	Cereals	0.2	1400	1450	1410	17-Mar-16
Andhra	West	Chintalapudi	MTU-1010	Cereats	0.2	1380	1410	1400	17-Mar-16
Andhra	West	Kovvur	MTU-1010	Cereats	0.1	1410	1450	1430	17-Mar-16
Andhra	West	Undi	MTU-1001	Coreats	0.1	1440	1480	1460	17-fMar-16
Andhra	West	Ungatur	MTU-1010	Cereals	0.1	1400	1460	1440	17-Mar-16
				Andhra	15				
	20	_	_	Pradesh Sub	1073				

#### Observation 4.3.3 Incomplete updation of data

When data of commodity Paddy was re-recorded after a certain period of time, it showed entirely new U.T. of Puducherry which had not uploaded their data previously. For example, when data was collected on 17th march 2016 data for entire U.T. Puducherry was not there whereas data when collected on 28<sup>th</sup> April 2016 for same crop for same date puducherry was there.

FINDING 3 WHEN DATA WAS COLLECTED ON 17th MARCH 2016 DATA FOR ENTIRE U.T. PUDUCHERRY WAS NOT THERE .

WHEREAS DATA WHEN COLLECTED ON 28th APRIL 2016 FOR SAME CROP FOR SAME DATE PUDUCHERRY WAS THERE

Table 4.3: Depicts the data Incomplete updation of data

FINDING 3 WH	EN DATA WAS COLL	ECTED ON 17th N	MARCH 2016 D	ATA FOR EN	TIRE U.T. P	UDUCHER	DUCHERRY WAS NOT THERE		
WHEREAS DATA	WHEN COLLECTED	ON 28th APRIL 20	16 FOR SAME	CROP FOR	SAME DATE	PUDUCHE	RRY WAS T	HERE	9
state_name	district_name	market_center _name	Variety	group_na me	Arrival	MIN	MAX	MODAL	date_arriv al
Pondicherry	Pondicherry	Madagadipet	Papatla	Cereals	1.37	1697	1697	1697	17-Mar-16
Pondicherry	Pondicherry	Madagadipet	Sinna Ponni	Cereals	1.37	1164	1164	1164	17-Mar-16
Pondicherry	Pondicherry	Madagadipet	Super Ponni	Cereals	1.37	1119	1119	1119	17-Mar-16
Pondicherry	Pondicherry	Madagadipet	White Ponni	Cereals	1.37	1132	1132	1132	17-Mar-16

#### Observation 4.3.4 Difference in the number of markets.

When data of commodity Paddy was re-recorded after a certain period of time, it showed entirely new markets which had not uploaded their data previously. For example, when data of 28<sup>th</sup> March<sup>th</sup>, 2016 was recorded at the end of the day, the district of Nellore in Andhra Pradesh showed 8 markets whereas data when recorded on 29<sup>th</sup> April 2016 showed 11 markets.

Table 4.4: Depicts the change in number of the markets for same crop from same state on 29 April 2016 when data of the same day was rerecorded at a subsequent date.

state_name	district_n ame	market_cent er_name	Variety	group_na me	Arrival	MIN	MAX	MODAL	date_arriv al
Andhra Pradesh	Nellore	Atmakur(SPS)	MTU-1010	Cereals	0.1	1410	1450	1430	28-Mar-16
Andhra Pradesh	Nellore	Gudur	MTU-1010	Cereals	0.1	1410	1460	1430	28-Mar-16
Andhra Pradesh	Nellore	Kavali	MTU-1010	Cereals	0.1	1410	1450	1430	28-Mar-16
Andhra Pradesh	Nellore	Kovur	MTU-1010	Cereals	0.3	1400	1450	1410	28-Mar-16
Andhra Pradesh	Nellore	Naidupet	MTU-1010	Cereals	0.1	1410	1450	1430	28-Mar-16
Andhra Pradesh	Nellore	Nellore	MTU-1010	Cereals	0.1	1410	1450	1430	28-Mar-16
Andhra Pradesh	Nellore	Rapur	MTU-1010	Cereals	0.1	1380	1450	1410	28-Mar-16
Andhra Pradesh	Nellore	Sullurpet	MTU-1010	Cereals	0.1	1410	1450	1430	28-Mar-16
Andhra Pradesh	Nellore	Udayagiri	MTU-1010	Cereals	0.1	1410	1450	1430	28-Mar-16
Andhra Pradesh	Nellore	Vakadu	MTU-1010	Cereals	0.1	1410	1450	1430	28-Mar-16
Andhra Pradesh	Nellore	Venkatagiri	MTU-1010	Cereals	0.1	1360	1410	1380	28-Mar-16

Table 4.4.1: Depicts the number of markets on 28<sup>th</sup> March 2016

ORIGINAL DATA COLLECTED ON 28 th MARCH 2016 SHOWS 8 MARKETS									
state_name	district_n ame	market_cent er_name	Variety	group_na me	Arrival	MIN	MAX	MODAL	date_arriv al
Andhra Pradesh	Nellore	Atmakur(SPS)	MTU-1010	Cereals	0.1	1410	1450	1430	28-Mar-16
Andhra Pradesh	Nellore	Gudur	MTU-1010	Cereals	0.1	1410	1460	1430	28-Mar-16
Andhra Pradesh	Nellore	Kavali	MTU-1010	Cereals	0.1	1410	1450	1430	28-Mar-16
Andhra Pradesh	Nellore	Kovur	MTU-1010	Cereals	0.3	1400	1450	1410	28-Mar-16
Andhra Pradesh	Nellore	Nellore	MTU-1010	Cereals	0.1	1410	1450	1430	28-Mar-16
Andhra Pradesh	Nellore	Sullurpet	MTU-1010	Cereals	0.1	1410	1450	1430	28-Mar-16
Andhra Pradesh	Nellore	Vakadu	MTU-1010	Cereals	0.1	1410	1450	1430	28-Mar-16
Andhra Pradesh	Nellore	Venkatagiri	MTU-1010	Cereals	0.1	1360	1410	1380	28-Mar-16

# 4.4 Findings

- (i) It is observed that there is constant delay in updating the data of commodities on the AGMARKNET portal. Many markets do not upload the data on the same day. The data is uploaded on the next day or during the course of the next few days. Additionally, instances have also been discovered where markets have uploaded data as late as at least ten days after the data was first uploaded on the portal.
  - These delays are preventing from being realized the essential function of making accurate agricultural marketing related information readily available to all the stakeholders.
- (ii) Several instances are recorded where various markets have uploaded the arithmetic mean of the minimum and maximum prices for the day, in place of modal price of the day. Additionally, there are markets which have made this error many times consecutively for several days straight. The modal price of a commodity is the price at which maximum trading of that commodity occurred. Putting in arithmetic mean of minimum and maximum prices of the commodity for the day, severely affects the overall quality of the data, as the stakeholder are now devoid of the valuable information about the modal price. Also, the information on the AGMARKNET portal is intended to be used for policy making purposes. Feeding of such incorrect information will severely affect the policy making process in an adverse manner.
- (iii) There are also few instances recorded where the values of arrival, minimum price for the day, maximum price for the day and modal price for the day are found to be changed. However, the number of such instances is so few that they can be attributed to error correction activities being carried out by the respective markets.

### 4.5 Recommendations

(i) Automation of data upload process: In the current situation, all the data of the day's trade in the various markets, is uploaded to the AGMARKNET portal at the end of the day. Each market compiles the data of all the transactions held throughout the day, identifies the minimum, maximum and modal prices of the commodities, calculates the total arrival of the various commodities, and, only then, can the data be uploaded to the portal.

However, such a method of manual compilation of data leaves room for human errors and also makes the entire process very challenging for the markets, as the amount of data generated in a single day for all the commodities is huge.

It is therefore recommended to make use of Information Technology Solutions to the problem such that each and every transaction that occurs in any given market, should occur through electronic channels only and also with due record keeping. This will ensure that the market personnel do not have to spend considerable time in compiling the data at the end of each working day. This will also ensure that chances of human error are minimized.

In the long run, it will ensure that all data is uploaded to the AGMARKNET portal in due time and can even reach lengths as far as real time updation of data on the portal. Additionally, since all transactions will be processed electronically, it will be possible to record even more aspects of the transactions that occur in the agricultural markets. This will lead to better analyses of the collected data, which is likely to give the policy makers deeper insight into the functioning of agricultural markets.

(ii) For the short term solutions, the data being uploaded onto the AGMARKNET portal from the different markets across the country, needs to constantly monitored for discrepancies. Periodic checks need to be placed in action by taking a sample of data and checking for irregularities such as late updation of data, uploading arithmetic mean of minimum and maximum prices in place of modal price, markets which upload erroneous data repeatedly, etc. In

addition, the existing system needs to be modified such that proper alerts are generated and sent to the concerned authorities whenever such irregularities in the data are brought to the surface.

(iii) Alternatively, there is need for cleaning and translation of commodity names and synonyms. Due to the diversity of languages and other cultural differences across the country, same crop or commodity may be known by different names in different parts of the country. Due to this, trading of commodities is not picking up the pace that it should have as the general farmers is not aware that the same commodity might be in demand in different parts of the country, but under different names.

However, if a translation of all the different names by which a particular variety of any given commodity is known in different parts of the country, is available, it is expected to greatly boost commodity trading along the length and breadth of the country.

## 5. Bibliography

- N. Agmon and N. Ahituv (1987), "Assessing data reliability in an information system," J. Management Information Systems, vol. 4, no. 2, pp. 34-44.
- N. Ahituv (1980), "A systematic approach toward assessing the value of an information system," MIS Quarterly, vol. 4, no. 4, pp. 61-75.
- T. Amer, A.D. Bailey, and P. De (1987), "A review of the computer information systems research related to accounting and auditing," J. Information Systems, vol. 2, no. 1, pp. 3-28.
- SE. Arnold (1992), "Information manufacturing: The road to database quality," Database, vol. 15, no. 5, pp. 32.
- J.E. Bailey and S.W. Pearson (1983), "Development of a tool for measuring and analyzing computer user satisfaction," Management Science, vol. 29, no. 5, pp. 530-545.
- D.P. Ballou and H.L. Pazer (1982), 'The impact of inspector fallibility on the inspection policy serial production system," Management Science, vol. 28, no. 4, pp. 387-399.
- D.P. Ballou and H.L. Pazer (1985), "Modeling data and process quality multiinput, multi-output information systems," Management Science, vol. 31, no. 2, pp. 150-162.
- D.P. Ballou and H.L. Pazer (1987), "Cost/quality tradeoffs for control procedures information systems," OMEGA: Int'l J. Management Science, vol. 15, no. 6, pp. 509-521.
- C. Batini, M. Lenzirini, and S. Navathe (1986), "A comparative analysis of methodologies for database schema integration," ACM Computing Surveys, vol. 18, no. 4, pp. 323-364.
- P.A. Bernstein and N. Goodman (1981), "Concurrency control distributed database systems," Computing Surveys, vol. 13, no. 2, pp. 185-221.
- B. Blaylock and L. Rees (1984), "Cognitive style and the usefulness of information," Decision Sciences, vol. 15, no. 1, pp. 74-91.
- G. Bodnar (1975), "Reliability modeling of internal control systems," Accounting Rev., vol. 50, no. 4, pp. 747-757.

- P. Bowen (1993), "Managing data quality accounting information systems: A stochastic clearing system approach," unpublished PhD dissertation, Univ. of Tennessee.
- M.L. Brodie (1980), "Data quality information systems, information, and management," vol. 3, pp. 245-258.
- W. Bulkeley (1992), "Databases are plagued by reign of error," Wall Street J.,
   p. B6.
- D. Bums and J. Loebbecke (1975), "Internal control evaluation: How the computer can help," J. Accountancy, vol. 140, no. 2, pp. 60-70.
- S. Chalton (1991), "The draft directive on data protection: an overview and progress to date," Inr'l Computer Law Adviser, vol. 6, no. 1, pp. 6-12.
- P.P. Chen (1976), "The entity-relationship model-Toward a unified view of data," ACM Trans. Database Systems, vol. 1, pp. 166-193.
- E.F. Codd (1970), "A relational model of data for large shared data Ganks," Comm. ACM, vol. 13, no. 6, pp. 377-387.
- R.B. Cooper (1983), "Decision production-A step toward a theory of managerial information requirements," Proc. Fourth Int'l Conf. on Information Systems, pp. 215-268, Houston, Tex..
- P. Cronin (1993), "Close the data quality gap through total data quality management," MIT Management.
- B.E. Cushing (1974), "A mathematical approach to the analysis and design of internal control systems," Accounting Rev., vol. 49, no. 1, pp. 24-41.
- C.J. Date (1990), An Introduction to Database Systems, Fifth edition. Reading, Mass.: Addison-Wesley.
- G.P.A. Delen and B.B. Rijsenbrij (1992), "The specification, engineering, and measurement of information systems quality," J. Systems Software, vol. 17, no. 3, pp. 205-217.
- W.H. Delone and E.R. McLean (1992), "Information systems success: The quest for the dependent variable," Information Systems Research, vol. 3, no. 1, pp. 60-95.

- D.E. Denning and P.J. Denning (1979), "Data Security," ACM Computing Surveys, vol. 11, no. 3, pp. 227-250.
- J.C. Emery (1969), Organizational planning and control systems: Theory and technology. New York: Macmillan.
- A.V. Feigenbaum (1991), Totul Qualify Control, Third edition. New York:
   McGraw-Hill.
- I.P. Fellegi and D. Holt (1976), "A systematic approach to automatic edit and imputation," J. Am. Statistical Assoc., vol. 71, no. 353, pp. 17-35.
- G. Feltham (1968), "The value of information," Accounting Rev., vol. 43, no. 4, pp. 684-696.
- R.S. Garfinkel, AS. Kunnathur, and G.E. Liepens (1986), "Optimal imputation of erroneous data: Categorical data, general edits," Operations Re- search, vol. 34, no. 5, pp. 744-751.
- D. Te'eni (1993), "Behavioral aspects of data production and their impact on data quality," .I. Database Management, vol. 4, no. 2, pp. 30-38.
- T.J. Teorey, D. Yang, and J.P. Fry 1986, "A logical design methodology for relational databases using the extended entity-relationship model," ACM Computing Surveys, vol. 18, no. 2, pp. 197-222.
- J.W. Tukey (1977), Exploratory Data Analysis. Reading, Mass.: Addison-Wesley, 1977.
- Y. Wand (1989), "A proposal for a formal model of objects," Object-Oriented Concepts, Databases, and Applications, W. Kim and F. Lochovsky, eds. New York: ACM Press.
- Y. Wand and R.Y. Wang (1994), "Anchoring data quality dimensions ontological foundations," Comm. ACM, forthcoming.
- Y. Wand and R. Weber (1987), "A model of control and audit procedure change evolving data processing systems," The Accounting Rev., vol. 64, no. 1, pp. 87-107.
- Y. Wand and R. Weber (1990), "An ontological model of an information system" IEEE Trans. Software Engineering, vol. 16, no. 11, pp. 1,282-1,292.

- R.Y. Wang and H.B. Kon (1993), "Towards total data quality management," Information Technology Action: Trends and Perspectives, R.Y. Wang, ed. Englewood Cliffs, N.J.: Prentice Hall.
- R.Y. Wang, H.B. Kon, and S.E. Madnick (1993), "Data quality requirements analysis and modeling," Proc. Ninth Int'l Con& on Data Engineering, pp. 670-677, Vienna.
- R.Y. Wang, M.P. Reddy, and A. Gupta (1993), "An object-oriented implementation of quality data products," Proc. Third Ann. Workshop Information Technologies and Systems, pp. 48-56, Orlando, Fla..
- Y.R. Wang and S.E. Madnick (1990), "A Polygen model for heterogeneous database systems: The source tagging perspective," Proc. 16th Int'l Conf. Very Large Databases, pp. 519-538, Brisbane, Australia.
- B. Wright (1992), "Authenticating EDI: The case for internal record keeping,"
   EDI Forum, pp. 82-84.
- S. Yu and J. Neter (1973), "A stochastic model of the internal control system,"
   J. Accounting Research, vol. 1, no. 3, pp. 273-295.
- R. Zmud (1978), "Concepts, theories, and techniques: An empirical investigation of the dimensionality of the concept of information," Decision Sciences, vol. 9, no. 2, pp. 187-195.

#### 6. Anexure-I

Both Price And Arrival [Paddy(Dhan)] of 17-Mar-2016 when data was collected on 28<sup>th</sup> March 2016.

# Both Price And Arrival [Paddy(Dhan)] of 17-Mar-2016

state_name	district_name	market_center_name	Variety

Andhra Pradesh	Anantapur	Dharmavaram	BPT
			MTU-
Andhra Pradesh	East Godavari	Anaparthy	1010
			MTU-
Andhra Pradesh	East Godavari	Mandapeta	1010
			Swarna
Andhra Pradesh	East Godavari	Peddapuram	Masuri (New)
Andhra Pradesh	Guntur	Chilakaluripet	BPT
Andhra Pradesh	Guntur	Macharla	BPT
Andhra Pradesh	Guntur	Repalli	BPT
Andhra Pradesh	Guntur	Sattenapalli	BPT
Andhra Pradesh	Krishna	Divi	BPT
Andhra Pradesh	Krishna	Movva Hqs	BPT
A 11 D 1 1	17 1 1		MTU-
Andhra Pradesh	Krishna	Movva Hqs	2077
Andhra Pradesh	Krishna	Mylavaram	BPT
Andhra Pradesh	Krishna	Nandigama	BPT
A 11 D 1 1	NI II	A (CDC)	MTU-
Andhra Pradesh	Nellore	Atmakur(SPS)	1010
Andhra Pradesh	Nellore	Gudur	MTU- 1010
Anuma Frauesii	Nellore	Gudui	MTU-
Andhra Pradesh	Nellore	Kavali	1010
7.1101110111011100011	11011010	Ravan	MTU-
Andhra Pradesh	Nellore	Kovur	1010
			MTU-
Andhra Pradesh	Nellore	Naidupet	1010
			MTU-
Andhra Pradesh	Nellore	Nellore	1010
A 11 D 1 1	NI II		MTU-
Andhra Pradesh	Nellore	Rapur	1010 MTU-
Andhra Pradesh	Nellore	Sullurpet	1010
Anumarradesii	Nellore	Sullui pet	MTU-
Andhra Pradesh	Nellore	Udayagiri	1010
		Jg	MTU-
Andhra Pradesh	Nellore	Vakadu	1010
			MTU-
Andhra Pradesh	Nellore	Venkatagiri	1010
Andhra Pradesh	Prakasam	Chirala	BPT
Andhra Pradesh	Prakasam	Darsi	BPT
Andhra Pradesh	Prakasam	Kandukur	BPT
Andhra Pradesh	Prakasam	Kondapi	BPT
Andhra Pradesh	Prakasam	Maddipadu	ВРТ

Andhra Pradesh	Prakasam	Ongole	BPT
Andhra Pradesh	Srikakulam	Amadalavalasa	Paddy
Andhra Pradesh	Srikakulam	Ichapuram	Paddy
Andhra Pradesh	Srikakulam	Palakonda	Paddy
Andhra Pradesh	Srikakulam	Pathapatnam	Paddy
Andhra Pradesh	Srikakulam	Ponduru	Paddy
Andhra Pradesh	Srikakulam	Rajam	Paddy
Andhra Pradesh	Vijayanagaram	Kothavalasa	1001
Andhra Pradesh	Vijayanagaram	Pusapatirega	1001
Andhra Pradesh	Vijayanagaram	Vijayanagaram	1001
Andhra Pradesh	Visakhapatnam	Bhimunipatnam	Paddy
7	· ioaiii apatiiaiii	2	
Andhra Pradesh	Visakhapatnam	Chodavaram	Samba Masuri
	·		Samba
Andhra Pradesh	Visakhapatnam	Chodavaram	Samba Masuri Swarna Masuri
Andhra Pradesh  Andhra Pradesh	Visakhapatnam West Godavari	Chodavaram  Bhimavaram	Samba Masuri Swarna Masuri (New) MTU-
Andhra Pradesh  Andhra Pradesh  Andhra Pradesh	Visakhapatnam  West Godavari  West Godavari	Chodavaram  Bhimavaram  Chintalapudi	Samba Masuri Swarna Masuri (New) MTU- 1001 MTU-
Andhra Pradesh  Andhra Pradesh  Andhra Pradesh  Andhra Pradesh	Visakhapatnam  West Godavari  West Godavari  West Godavari	Chodavaram  Bhimavaram  Chintalapudi  Chintalapudi	Samba Masuri Swarna Masuri (New) MTU- 1001 MTU- 1010 MTU-

## **Annexure-II**

Both Price And Arrival [Paddy(Dhan)] of 28-April-2016 when data was collected on 28<sup>th</sup> March 2016.Both Price And Arrival [Paddy(Dhan)] of 29-April-2016

Both Price And Arrival [Paddy(Dhan)] of 28-Mar-2016

D011111100711	Betti Tiles i tila til tila til tila til tila til tila tila				
state_name	district_name	market_center_name	Variety	group_name	
Andhra					
Pradesh	East Godavari	Anaparthy	MTU-1010	Cereals	
Andhra	East Godavari	Mandapeta	MTU-1010	Cereals	

35

Pradesh				
Andhra				
Pradesh	East Godavari	Peddapuram	Surekha	Cereals
Andhra	Foot Codoveri	Doddonurom	Swarna Masuri	Caragla
Pradesh Andhra	East Godavari	Peddapuram	(New)	Cereals
Pradesh	East Godavari	Samalkot	Paddy	Cereals
Andhra	Last Godavari	Jamarkot	1 addy	CCICais
Pradesh	Guntur	Chilakaluripet	BPT	Cereals
Andhra		•		
Pradesh	Guntur	Macharla	BPT	Cereals
Andhra				
Pradesh	Guntur	Repalli	BPT	Cereals
Andhra	Cuptur	Cattononolli	DDT	Coroalo
Pradesh Andhra	Guntur	Sattenapalli	BPT	Cereals
Pradesh	Krishna	Divi	BPT	Cereals
Andhra	Kriorina	DIVI		0010013
Pradesh	Krishna	Movva Hqs	ВРТ	Cereals
Andhra		·		
Pradesh	Krishna	Movva Hqs	MTU-2077	Cereals
Andhra				
Pradesh	Krishna	Mylavaram	Other	Cereals
Andhra Pradesh	Krishna	Nandigama	BPT	Cereals
Andhra	NIBIIIa	Ivariulyama	DFI	Cereais
Pradesh	Nellore	Atmakur(SPS)	MTU-1010	Cereals
Andhra				
Pradesh	Nellore	Gudur	MTU-1010	Cereals
Andhra				
Pradesh	Nellore	Kavali	MTU-1010	Cereals
Andhra	Nellore	Voyur	MTU-1010	Coroals
Pradesh Andhra	Nellore	Kovur	10110-1010	Cereals
Pradesh	Nellore	Naidupet	MTU-1010	Cereals
Andhra	Tronor o	Transapor	inite to to	0010010
Pradesh	Nellore	Nellore	MTU-1010	Cereals
Andhra				
Pradesh	Nellore	Rapur	MTU-1010	Cereals
Andhra	NI-H-	Codlores	NATIL 4040	0
Pradesh	Nellore	Sullurpet	MTU-1010	Cereals
Andhra Pradesh	Nellore	Udayagiri	MTU-1010	Cereals
Andhra	TACHOLC	Juayayiii	14110-1010	ocicais
Pradesh	Nellore	Vakadu	MTU-1010	Cereals
Andhra				
Pradesh	Nellore	Venkatagiri	MTU-1010	Cereals

Andhra				
Pradesh	Prakasam	Chirala	BPT	Cereals
Andhra				
Pradesh	Prakasam	Darsi	BPT	Cereals
Andhra				
Pradesh	Prakasam	Kandukur	BPT	Cereals
Andhra				
Pradesh	Prakasam	Kondapi	BPT	Cereals
Andhra				
Pradesh	Prakasam	Maddipadu	BPT	Cereals
Andhra			D D T	
Pradesh	Prakasam	Ongole	BPT	Cereals
Andhra				
Pradesh	Srikakulam	Ichapuram	Paddy	Cereals
Andhra				
Pradesh	Srikakulam	Palakonda	Paddy	Cereals
Andhra	Cultivational	D di	DI-I-	0
Pradesh	Srikakulam	Ponduru	Paddy	Cereals
Andhra	Cultural and a mar	Delene	DI-I-	0
Pradesh	Srikakulam	Rajam	Paddy	Cereals
Andhra	\/;;	V a the average as	1001	Camaala
Pradesh	Vijayanagaram	Kothavalasa	1001	Cereals
Andhra	\/;;	Dom soth in surem	1001	Camaala
Pradesh	Vijayanagaram	Parvathipuram	1001	Cereals
Andhra Pradesh	Vijovopogorom	Ducapatirage	1001	Cereals
Andhra	Vijayanagaram	Pusapatirega	1001	Cereais
Pradesh	Vijayanagaram	Vijayanagaram	1001	Cereals
Andhra	Vijayanayarani	Vijayanayarani	1001	Cereais
Pradesh	Visakhapatnam	Bhimunipatnam	Paddy	Cereals
Andhra	visakiiapatiiaiii	Driimampatham	1 addy	Cereais
Pradesh	Visakhapatnam	Chodavaram	Samba Masuri	Cereals
Andhra	Visakiiapatiiaiii	Onodavarani	Swarna Masuri	ocicais
Pradesh	West Godavari	Bhimavaram	(New)	Cereals
Andhra	Troot Codavari	Diminavarani	(11011)	0010010
Pradesh	West Godavari	Chintalapudi	MTU-1001	Cereals
Andhra				00100110
Pradesh	West Godavari	Chintalapudi	MTU-1010	Cereals
Andhra				
Pradesh	West Godavari	Kovvur	MTU-1010	Cereals
Andhra				
Pradesh	West Godavari	Undi	MTU-1010	Cereals
Andhra				
Pradesh	West Godavari	Ungatur	MTU-1010	Cereals
				Andhra
				Pradesh Sub
-	-	-	-	Total

Assam	Bangaigaon	Bongiagaon	Paddy fine	Cereals
Assam	Dhemaji	Silapathar	Paddy fine	Cereals
				Assam Sub
-	-	-	-	Total
Chattisgarh	Bastar	Bhopalpattnam	Other	Cereals
Chattisgarh	Bastar	Bijapur	Other	Cereals
Chattisgarh	Bastar	Charama	Other	Cereals
Chattisgarh	Bastar	Muli	Paddy Coarse	Cereals
Chattisgarh	Bastar	Pharasgaon	Paddy Coarse	Cereals
Chattisgarh	Bastar	Sambalpur	Common	Cereals
Chattisgarh	Bijapur	Bharamgarh	Other	Cereals
Chattisgarh	Bilaspur	Bilaspur	Paddy fine	Cereals
Chattisgarh	Bilaspur	Bilha	Other	Cereals
Chattisgarh	Bilaspur	Bilha	Paddy fine	Cereals
Chattisgarh	Bilaspur	Lormi	Paddy	Cereals
Chattisgarh	Bilaspur	Munguli	Paddy	Cereals
Chattisgarh	Bilaspur	Munguli	Paddy fine	Cereals
Chattisgarh	Bilaspur	Ratanpur	Paddy	Cereals
Chattisgarh	Bilaspur	Takhatpur	Paddy	Cereals
Chattisgarh	Dhamtari	Dhamtari	1001	Cereals
Chattisgarh	Dhamtari	Dhamtari	BPT	Cereals
Chattisgarh	Dhamtari	Dhamtari	I.R. 64	Cereals
			Swarna Masuri	
Chattisgarh	Dhamtari	Dhamtari	(New)	Cereals
Chattisgarh	Dhamtari	Kurud	1001	Cereals
Chattisgarh	Dhamtari	Kurud	HMT	Cereals
Chattisgarh	Dhamtari	Kurud	MTU-1010	Cereals
Chattisgarh	Dhamtari	Kurud	Samba Masuri	Cereals
Chattiagarh	Dhamtari	Kurand	Swarna Masuri	Coroalo
Chattisgarh	Dhamtari	Kurud	(New)	Cereals
Chattisgarh	Janjgir	Akaltara	Paddy Medium	Cereals
Chattisgarh	Janjgir	Champa	Paddy	Cereals
Chattisgarh	Janjgir	Jaijaipur	Paddy Madium	Cereals
Chattisgarh	Janjgir	Naila	Paddy Medium	Cereals
Chattisgarh	Janjgir	Shakti	Paddy	Cereals
Chattisgarh	Jashpur	Jaspur	Common	Cereals
Chattisgarh	Jashpur	Pathalgaon	Common	Cereals
Chattisgarh	Korba	Katghora	Paddy	Cereals
Chattisgarh	Mahasamund	Bagbahra	Common	Cereals
Chattisgarh	Mahasamund	Basana	MTU-1001	Cereals
Chattisgarh	Mahasamund	Bhavarpur	HMT	Cereals
Chattisgarh	Mahasamund	Bhavarpur	Swarna Masuri	Cereals

			(New)	
Chattisgarh	Mahasamund	Bhoring	Paddy Coarse	Cereals
Chattisgarh	Mahasamund	Bhoring	Paddy fine	Cereals
Chattisgarh	Mahasamund	Jhalap	Paddy Coarse	Cereals
Chattisgarh	Mahasamund	Mahasamund	Paddy Coarse	Cereals
Chattisgarh	Mahasamund	Mahasamund	Paddy fine	Cereals
Chattisgarh	Mahasamund	Pithoura	Paddy fine	Cereals
Chattisgarh	Mahasamund	Sarayapali	MTU-1001	Cereals
Chattisgarh	Mahasamund	Sarayapali	MTU-1010	Cereals
Chattisgarh	Mahasamund	Sarayapali	Swarna Masuri (New)	Cereals
Chattisgarh	Narayanpur	Antagarh	Paddy Coarse	Cereals
Chattisgarh	North Bastar	Narharpur	Other	Cereals
Chattisgarh	Raigarh	Gharghoda	Paddy Coarse	Cereals
Chattisgarh	Raigarh	Kharsiya	Paddy Coarse	Cereals
Chattisgarh	Raigarh	Raigarh	Paddy Coarse	Cereals
Chattisgarh	Raigarh	Sarangarh	Paddy Coarse	Cereals
Chattisgarh	Raigarh	Sariya	Paddy Coarse	Cereals
Chattisgarh	Raipur	Abhanpur	Paddy	Cereals
Chattisgarh	Raipur	Arang	Paddy Medium	Cereals
Chattisgarh	Raipur	Balodabazar	Paddy	Cereals
Chattisgarh	Raipur	Balodabazar	Paddy fine	Cereals
Chattisgarh	Raipur	Bhatgaon	Common	Cereals
Chattisgarh	Raipur	Bhatgaon	Paddy	Cereals
Chattisgarh	Raipur	Bhatgaon	Paddy fine	Cereals
Chattisgarh	Raipur	Kasdol	Paddy	Cereals
Chattisgarh	Raipur	Kasdol	Paddy fine	Cereals
Chattisgarh	Raipur	Navapara	1001	Cereals
Chattisgarh	Raipur	Navapara	HMT	Cereals
Chattisgarh	Raipur	Navapara	MTU-1008	Cereals
Chattisgarh	Raipur	Navapara	Samba Masuri	Cereals
Chattia wa mb	Dainer	Nevenene	Swarna Masuri	Caracla
Chattisgarh	Raipur	Navapara	(New)	Cereals
Chattisgarh	Raipur	Neora	Common	Cereals
Chattisgarh	Raipur	Raipur	Paddy	Cereals
Chattisgarh	Raipur	Raipur	Paddy fine	Cereals
Chattisgarh	Raipur	Rajim	MTU-1008	Cereals
Chattisgarh	Raipur	Rajim	Other	Cereals
Chattisgarh	Raipur	Rajim	Samba Masuri	Cereals
Chattisgarh	Raipur	Rajim	Swarna Masuri (New)	Cereals
Chattisgarh	Rajnandgaon	Dongargaon	Other	Cereals

Chattisgarh	Rajnandgaon	Rajnandgaon	1001	Cereals
Chattisgarh	Rajnandgaon	Rajnandgaon	MTU-1010	Cereals
Chattisgarh	Rajnandgaon	Rajnandgaon	Other	Cereals
Chattisgarh	Rajnandgaon	Rajnandgaon	Paddy fine	Cereals
Chattisgarh	Rajnandgaon	Rajnandgaon	Paddy Medium	Cereals
	j j		Swarna Masuri	
Chattisgarh	Rajnandgaon	Rajnandgaon	(New)	Cereals
Chattisgarh	Surguja	Sitapur	I.R. 36	Cereals
_	_	_	_	Chattisgarh Sub Total
Gujarat	Anand	Borsad	Other	Cereals
Gajarat	7 triarra	Khambhat(Grain	Curo	0010013
Gujarat	Anand	Market)	Other	Cereals
Gujarat	Anand	Khambhat(Grain Market)	Paddy	Cereals
Gujarat	Anand	Tarapur	Other	Cereals
Gujarat	Dahod	Dahod	Paddy Coarse	Cereals
Gujarat	Dahod	Dahod	Paddy fine	Cereals
Gujarat	Sabarkantha	Prantij(Salala)	Jaya	Cereals
Gujarat	Surat	Mandvi	Other	Cereals
Gujarat	Surat	S.Mandvi	Other	Cereals
Gujarat	Surat	Songadh	Other	Cereals
Gujarat	Surat	Uchhal	Other	Cereals
Gujarat	Surat	Vyra	Other	Cereals
-	-	-	-	Gujarat Sub Total
Haryana	Fatehabad	Fatehabad	Other	Cereals
Haryana	Hissar	Uklana	Basumathi	Cereals
Haryana	Jind	Narwana	Other	Cereals
Haryana	Kaithal	Kaithal	1121	Cereals
Haryana	Sirsa	Sirsa	D.B.	Cereals
-	-	-	-	Haryana Sub Total
Jharkhand	Lohardaga	Lohardaga	Paddy fine	Cereals
Jharkhand	Lohardaga	Lohardaga	Paddy Medium	Cereals
-	-	-	-	Jharkhand Sub Total
Karnataka	Bellary	Bellary	Paddy Medium	Cereals
Karnataka	Chamrajnagar	Kollegal	Paddy Medium	Cereals
Karnataka	Chikmagalur	Chikkamagalore	Paddy fine	Cereals
Karnataka	Dharwad	Kalagategi	Paddy	Cereals
Karnataka	Hassan	Belur	Paddy	Cereals
Karnataka	Karwar(Uttar	Mundgod	Paddy	Cereals

	Kannad)			
	Madikeri(Kodag			
Karnataka	u)	Gonikappal	Paddy Medium	Cereals
	Mangalore(Daks			
Karnataka	hin Kannad)	Belthangdi	Paddy	Cereals
	Mangalore(Daks			
Karnataka	hin Kannad)	Mangalore	Paddy	Cereals
Karnataka	Mysore	Santhesargur	Paddy	Cereals
Karnataka	Mysore	T. Narasipura	Paddy	Cereals
Karnataka	Raichur	Raichur	Rajahamsa	Cereals
Karnataka	Raichur	Raichur	Sona Mahsuri	Cereals
Karnataka	Shimoga	Shikaripura	I.R. 64	Cereals
Karnataka	Shimoga	Sorabha	Paddy	Cereals
	Ŭ			Karnataka Sub
-	-	-	-	Total
Kerala	Kasargod	Kasargod	Other	Cereals
Kerala	Wayanad	Kalpetta	Other	Cereals
Kerala	Wayanad	Pulpally	Other	Cereals
				Kerala Sub
-	-	-	-	Total
Madhya				
Pradesh	Anupur	Jaithari	Other	Cereals
Madhya				
Pradesh	Anupur	Kotma	Other	Cereals
Madhya Pradesh	Dalaghat	Dologhot	Doddy fino	Cereals
Madhya	Balaghat	Balaghat	Paddy fine	Cereais
Pradesh	Balaghat	Katangi	Common	Cereals
Madhya	Dalagriat	Katarigi	COMMINION	ocicais
Pradesh	Balaghat	Katangi	Other	Cereals
Madhya	J	3		
Pradesh	Balaghat	Mohgaon	Common	Cereals
Madhya				
Pradesh	Balaghat	Praswada	Common	Cereals
Madhya				
Pradesh	Balaghat	Varaseoni	Paddy fine	Cereals
Madhya	Dologhat	Varance:	Dod d N //!!:	Corosis
Pradesh	Balaghat	Varaseoni	Paddy Medium	Cereals
Madhya Pradesh	Gwalior	Lashkar	Common	Cereals
Madhya	Gwalloi	Lastikai	COMMINUM	Cerears
Pradesh	Jabalpur	Jabalpur	Other	Cereals
Madhya	, sa.c.,pai		301	55. 54.6
Pradesh	Katni	Katni	Paddy Medium	Cereals
				Madhya
-	-	-	-	Pradesh Sub

				Total
Maharashtr				
а	Bhandara	Pavani	Other	Cereals
Maharashtr				
a .	Chandrapur	Brahmpuri	Other	Cereals
Maharashtr	Chandranur	Chimur	Other	Cereals
a Maharashtr	Chandrapur	Chimu	Other	Cereais
a	Chandrapur	Savali	Other	Cereals
Maharashtr	onanarapar	Cavan	Other	0010013
а	Chandrapur	Sindevahi	Other	Cereals
Maharashtr	'			
а	Gondiya	Goregaon	Other	Cereals
Maharashtr				
а	Raigad	Alibagh	Other	Cereals
Maharashtr	D : 1			
а	Raigad	Murud	Other	Cereals Maharashtra
				Sub Total
Manipur	Imphal East	Lamlong Bazaar	Other	Cereals
•	'	9	Other	Cereals
Manipur	Imphal West	Imphal	Other	Manipur Sub
_	_			Total
Orissa	Balasore	Jaleswar	Other	Cereals
Orissa	Bhadrak	Bhadrak	1001	Cereals
Orissa	Cuttack	Kendupatna	Other	Cereals
Orissa	Ganjam	Bhanjanagar	Common	Cereals
Orissa	Jajpur	Jajpur	Other	Cereals
Orissa	Puri	Nimapara	Other	Cereals
Orissa	Sundergarh	Bonai	Other	Cereals
011330	Janacigani	Doriui	Other	Orissa Sub
-	-	-	-	Total
Pondicherry	Pondicherry	Madagadipet	ADT 37	Cereals
Pondicherry	Pondicherry	Madagadipet	Pommani	Cereals
Pondicherry	Pondicherry	Thattanchavady	ADT 37	Cereals
Pondicherry	Pondicherry	Thattanchavady	ADT 39	Cereals
Pondicherry	Pondicherry	Thattanchavady	Pommani	Cereals
Pondicherry	Pondicherry	Thattanchavady	White Ponni	Cereals
		actanonavaaj		Pondicherry
-	-	-	-	Sub Total
Punjab	Amritsar	Amritsar	1121	Cereals
Punjab	Ludhiana	Khanna	Basumathi	Cereals
Punjab	Muktsar	Giddarbaha	Basumathi	Cereals
-	-	-	-	Punjab Sub

				Total
Rajasthan	Bundi	Bundi	Other	Cereals
Rajasthan	Hanumangarh	Hanumangarh Town	Basumathi	Cereals
Rajasthan	Kota	Kota	Other	Cereals
				Rajasthan Sub
-	-	-	-	Total
Tamil Nadu	Cuddalore	Kattumaner koil	Other	Cereals
Tamil Nadu	Cuddalore	Virudhachalam	ADT 38	Cereals
Tamil Nadu	Cuddalore	Virudhachalam	ADT 39	Cereals
Tamil Nadu	Cuddalore	Virudhachalam	BPT	Cereals
Tamil Nadu	Cuddalore	Virudhachalam	Co. 43	Cereals
Tamil Nadu	Cuddalore	Virudhachalam	Other	Cereals
Tamil Nadu	Cuddalore	Virudhachalam	Paddy	Cereals
Tamil Nadu	Cuddalore	Virudhachalam	Pommani	Cereals
Tamil Nadu	Cuddalore	Virudhachalam	White Ponni	Cereals
Tamil Nadu	Salem	Karumanturai	BPT	Cereals
Tamil Nadu	Salem	Thammampati	Other	Cereals
Tamil Nadu	Thirunelveli	Ambasamudram	Other	Cereals
Tamil Nadu	Thirunelveli	Sankarankovil	ADT 36	Cereals
Tamil Nadu	Thiruvannamalai	Arani	A. Ponni	Cereals
Tamil Nadu	Thiruvannamalai	Arani	ADT 37	Cereals
Tamil Nadu	Thiruvannamalai	Arani	ADT 43	Cereals
Tamil Nadu	Thiruvannamalai	Arani	Sona	Cereals
Tamil Nadu	Thiruvannamalai	Chethupattu	A. Ponni	Cereals
Tamil Nadu	Thiruvannamalai	Chethupattu	ADT 37	Cereals
Tamil Nadu	Thiruvannamalai	Chethupattu	ADT 42	Cereals
Tamil Nadu	Thiruvannamalai	Chethupattu	Other	Cereals
Tamil Nadu	Thiruvannamalai	Desur	A. Ponni	Cereals
Tamil Nadu	Thiruvannamalai	Desur	ADT 37	Cereals
Tamil Nadu	Thiruvannamalai	Desur	ADT 39	Cereals
Tamil Nadu	Thiruvannamalai	Desur	Other	Cereals
Tamil Nadu	Thiruvannamalai	Kilpennathur	ADT 37	Cereals
Tamil Nadu	Thiruvannamalai	Kilpennathur	Other	Cereals
		Polur(Thiruvannamala		
Tamil Nadu	Thiruvannamalai	i)	A. Ponni	Cereals
		Polur(Thiruvannamala		
Tamil Nadu	Thiruvannamalai	i)	ADT 37	Cereals
Tom:!! N!	This was a second to	Polur(Thiruvannamala	ADT 40	Corosis
Tamil Nadu	Thiruvannamalai	Polur(Thiruvannamala	ADT 42	Cereals
Tamil Nadu	Thiruvannamalai	i)	Other	Cereals
Tamil Nadu	Thiruvannamalai	Thiruvannamalai	A. Ponni	Cereals

Tamil Nadu	Thiruvannamalai	Thiruvannamalai	ADT 37	Cereals
Tamil Nadu	Thiruvannamalai	Vanapuram	ADT 36	Cereals
Tamil Nadu	Thiruvannamalai	Vanapuram	Other	Cereals
Tamil Nadu	Thiruvannamalai	Vandavasi	ADT 37	Cereals
Tamil Nadu	Thiruvannamalai	Vandavasi	Other	Cereals
Tamil Nadu	Thiruvannamalai	Vettavalam	A. Ponni	Cereals
Tamil Nadu	Thiruvannamalai	Vettavalam	ADT 37	Cereals
Tamil Nadu	Thiruvannamalai	Vettavalam	Other	Cereals
Tamil Nadu	Vellore	Ammoor	Sona	Cereals
Tamil Nadu	Vellore	Ammoor	Super Ponni	Cereals
Tamil Nadu	Vellore	Kalavai	Super Ponni	Cereals
Tamil Nadu	Vellore	Kaveripakkam	ADT 37	Cereals
Tamil Nadu	Vellore	Vellore	ADT 37	Cereals
Tamil Nadu	Vellore	Vellore	ADT 43	Cereals
Tamil Nadu	Villupuram	Avalurpet	ADT 37	Cereals
Tamil Nadu	Villupuram	Avalurpet	ADT 39	Cereals
Tamil Nadu	Villupuram	Gingee	ADT 37	Cereals
Tamil Nadu	Villupuram	Gingee	ADT 43	Cereals
Tamil Nadu	Villupuram	Gingee	Other	Cereals
Tamil Nadu	Villupuram	Gingee	Ponni	Cereals
Tamil Nadu	Villupuram	Manalurpet	Other	Cereals
Tamil Nadu	Villupuram	Sangarapuram	ADT 37	Cereals
Tamil Nadu	Villupuram	Thirukovilur	BPT	Cereals
Tamil Nadu	Villupuram	Thirukovilur	Other	Cereals
Tamil Nadu	Villupuram	Thiryagadurgam	ADT 36	Cereals
Tamil Nadu	Villupuram	Thiryagadurgam	ADT 37	Cereals
Tamil Nadu	Villupuram	Thiryagadurgam	Other	Cereals
Tamil Nadu	Villupuram	Thiryagadurgam	Super Ponni	Cereals
Tamil Nadu	Villupuram	Tiruvennainallur	ADT 37	Cereals
Tamil Nadu	Villupuram	Tiruvennainallur	Other	Cereals
Tamil Nadu	Villupuram	Ulundurpettai	ADT 37	Cereals
Tamil Nadu	Villupuram	Ulundurpettai	ADT 39	Cereals
Tamil Nadu	Villupuram	Ulundurpettai	Ponni	Cereals
Tamil Nadu	Villupuram	Valathi	Other	Cereals
Tamil Nadu	Villupuram	Vikkiravandi	ADT 37	Cereals
Tamil Nadu	Villupuram	Villupuram	ADT 37	Cereals
Tamil Nadu	Villupuram	Villupuram	ADT 39	Cereals
Tamil Nadu	Villupuram	Villupuram	Other	Cereals
Tamil Nadu	Villupuram	Villupuram	White Ponni	Cereals
-	-	-	-	Tamil Nadu Sub Total
Telangana	Karimnagar	Choppadandi	I.R. 64	Cereals

Telangana	Karimnagar	Gangadhara	I.R. 64	Cereals
Telangana	Karimnagar	Karimnagar	I.R. 64	Cereals
Telangana	Karimnagar	Karimnagar	Samba Masuri	Cereals
Telangana	Karimnagar	Kataram	Paddy	Cereals
Telangana	Karimnagar	Koratla	Paddy	Cereals
Telangana	Karimnagar	Manthani	Paddy	Cereals
Telangana	Khammam	Bhadrachalam	1001	Cereals
Telangana	Khammam	Kallur	Samba Masuri	Cereals
Telangana	Khammam	Kothagudem	1001	Cereals
Telangana	Khammam	Nelakondapally	Samba Masuri	Cereals
Telangana	Khammam	Sattupalli	Samba Masuri	Cereals
Telangana	Mahbubnagar	Badepalli	Hansa	Cereals
Telangana	Mahbubnagar	Gadwal	Hansa	Cereals
Telangana	Mahbubnagar	Gadwal	Sona	Cereals
Telangana	Mahbubnagar	Mahbubnagar	Hansa	Cereals
Telangana	Mahbubnagar	Wanaparthy town	Hansa	Cereals
Telangana	Nalgonda	Aler	I.R. 64	Cereals
Telangana	Nalgonda	Bhongir	I.R. 64	Cereals
Telangana	Nalgonda	Suryapeta	I.R. 64	Cereals
Telangana	Nalgonda	Suryapeta	Samba Masuri	Cereals
Telangana	Nalgonda	Tirumalagiri	I.R. 64	Cereals
Telangana	Warangal	Jangaon	I.R. 64	Cereals
Telangana	Warangal	Kesamudram	Jaya	Cereals
Telangana	Warangal	Kesamudram	MTU-1001	Cereals
Telangana	Warangal	Kesamudram	MTU-1010	Cereals
Telangana	Warangal	Kesamudram	Samba Masuri	Cereals
Telangana	Warangal	Mahabubabad	1001	Cereals
				Telangana Sub
-	-	-	-	Total
Tripuro	South District	Carios	Swarna Masuri	Coroals
Tripura	South District	Garjee	(New)	Cereals
Tripura	West District	Champaknagar	Masuri	Cereals
Tripura	West District	Mohanpur	Masuri Other	Cereals Cereals
Tripura	West District	Mohanpur		
Tripura	West District	Taliamura	Masuri	Cereals Tripura Sub
_	_	_	-	Total
Uttar				
Pradesh	Aligarh	Aligarh	Basumathi	Cereals
Uttar				
Pradesh	Bahraich	Bahraich	Paddy	Cereals
Uttar	Pahraich	Maannara	Othor	Coroals
Pradesh	Bahraich	Naanpara	Other	Cereals

Uttar				
Pradesh	Bulandshahar	Divai	Basumathi	Cereals
Uttar				
Pradesh	Bulandshahar	Sikarpur	Basumathi	Cereals
Uttar				
Pradesh	Etawah	Bharthna	Paddy Coarse	Cereals
Uttar				
Pradesh	Faizabad	Faizabad	Paddy Coarse	Cereals
Uttar				
Pradesh	Gonda	Gonda	Common	Cereals
Uttar				
Pradesh	Gorakhpur	Chorichora	Paddy Coarse	Cereals
Uttar				
Pradesh	Hardoi	Hardoi	Other	Cereals
Uttar				
Pradesh	Hardoi	Madhoganj	Other	Cereals
Uttar				
Pradesh	Hathras	Haathras	Sugandha	Cereals
Uttar			SuperFine(Basm	
Pradesh	Hathras	Haathras	ati)	Cereals
Uttar				
Pradesh	Maharajganj	Partaval	Paddy Coarse	Cereals
Uttar	Padrauna(Kusina			
Pradesh	gar)	Tamkuhi Road	Paddy Coarse	Cereals
Uttar				
Pradesh	Pillibhit	Pilibhit	Other	Cereals
Uttar				
Pradesh	Shahjahanpur	Shahjahanpur	Other	Cereals
Uttar				
Pradesh	Siddharth Nagar	Naugarh	Paddy Coarse	Cereals
Uttar				
Pradesh	Siddharth Nagar	Wansi	Paddy Coarse	Cereals
Uttar				
Pradesh	Sitapur	Sitapur	Other	Cereals
				Uttar Pradesh
- \\\\+	-	-	-	Sub Total
West	Dandon	D!-b/D	OH	0
Bengal	Bankura	Bishnupur(Bankura)	Other	Cereals
West	Dandona		I.D. 27	0
Bengal	Bankura	Khatra	I.R. 36	Cereals
West	Davido	I/I t	Swarna Masuri	0
Bengal	Bankura	Khatra	(New)	Cereals
West	Dink h	Dialation	Oth a :-	Comosta
Bengal	Birbhum	Birbhum	Other	Cereals
West	Dink h	Calmthia	C a ma s =	Comosta
Bengal	Birbhum	Sainthia	Common	Cereals
West	Burdwan	Burdwan	Common	Cereals

Bengal				
West				
Bengal	Burdwan	Burdwan	Fine	Cereals
West	D 1	0 1 (0 1 )	F.	
Bengal	Burdwan	Guskara(Burdwan)	Fine	Cereals
West	Burdwan	   Kalna	I.R. 36	Cereals
Bengal West	Duruwari	Nallia	I.K. 30	Cereais
Bengal	Burdwan	   Kalna	Ratna	Cereals
West	Barawan	Kullu	Swarna Masuri	Ociouis
Bengal	Burdwan	Kalna	(New)	Cereals
West				
Bengal	Burdwan	Katwa	Other	Cereals
West				
Bengal	Burdwan	Memari	Common	Cereals
West			F.	
Bengal	Burdwan	Memari	Fine	Cereals
West	Coochbehar	   Dinhata	Common	Cereals
Bengal West	Coochbellal	Diffiata	Common	Cereais
Bengal	Coochbehar	Haldibari	Common	Cereals
West	COCCIDENTAL	Haraibari	GOTTITION	0010013
Bengal	Coochbehar	Mathabhanga	Common	Cereals
West		<u> </u>		
Bengal	Coochbehar	Mekhliganj	Other	Cereals
West				
Bengal	Coochbehar	Toofanganj	Fine	Cereals
West	Dakahin Dinainun	Dalumahat	N do o umi	Canada
Bengal West	Dakshin Dinajpur	Balurghat	Masuri	Cereals
Bengal	Dakshin Dinajpur	   Balurghat	Other	Cereals
West	Daksiiii Dinajpai	Dalargilat	Other	ocicais
Bengal	Darjeeling	Siliguri	Paddy Coarse	Cereals
West	, ,	<u> </u>		
Bengal	Darjeeling	Siliguri	Paddy fine	Cereals
West				
Bengal	Hooghly	Kalipur	Other	Cereals
West	l., .,		Swarna Masuri	
Bengal	Hooghly	Kalipur	(New)	Cereals
West Bengal	Jalpaiguri	   Falakata	Common	Cereals
West	JaipaiyuH	i aiakata	COMMON	Cereais
Bengal	Malda	Samsi	Other	Cereals
West	Marada	Carrior	30101	3010013
Bengal	Malda	Samsi	Paddy fine	Cereals
West			j	
Bengal	Medinipur(E)	Egra/contai	Paddy Coarse	Cereals

West				
Bengal	Medinipur(E)	Egra/contai	Paddy fine	Cereals
West			Swarna Masuri	
Bengal	Medinipur(W)	Garbeta(Medinipur)	(New)	Cereals
West				
Bengal	Medinipur(W)	Ghatal	Common	Cereals
West				
Bengal	Medinipur(W)	Ghatal	Fine	Cereals
West				
Bengal	Murshidabad	Jangipur	I.R. 36	Cereals
West				
Bengal	Murshidabad	Jiaganj	Other	Cereals
West				
Bengal	Murshidabad	Kandi	Other	Cereals